
Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

1 
 

MINUTES OF MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA  
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 
 
The Board of Commissioners of Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, met in Budget/Public Policy 
Session in Conference Center Room 267 on the 2nd floor of the Charlotte-Mecklenburg 
Government Center located at 600 East Fourth Street, Charlotte, North Carolina at 2:33 p.m. on 
Tuesday, April 25, 2023.  
 
 

ATTENDANCE 
 
 
Present:  Chair George Dunlap and Commissioners  

Leigh Altman, Patricia “Pat” Cotham, Arthur Griffin, 
Mark Jerrell, Vilma D. Leake, Laura J Meier, Elaine Powell,  
and Susan Rodriguez-McDowell 
County Manager Dena R. Diorio 
County Attorney Tyrone C. Wade 
Clerk to the Board Kristine M. Smith 

 
 
Absent:  Deputy Clerk to the Board, Arlissa Eason 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER  

 
 

The meeting was called to order by Chair Dunlap, followed by introductions and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag. 
 
 
23-0270 FY2024 PROPOSED FEE ADJUSTMENTS 
  
The Board received as information presentations on proposed fee adjustments for FY2024 from 
Park and Recreation, Land Use and Environmental Services (LUESA), and Public Health. 
  
  



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

2 
 

Background: Each year, the Board of County Commissioners receives a presentation highlighting 
proposed fee adjustments that the County Manager is considering as part of the Recommended 
Budget.  Staff from Park and Recreation, Land Use and Environmental Services, and Public Health 
will provide the context for each proposed fee adjustment and respond to any questions. 
 
W. Lee Jones, Director, Park and Recreation, Ebenezer Gujjarlapudi, Director, Land Use and 
Environmental Services, and Dr. Raynard Washington, Public Health Director gave the 
presentation. 
 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

3 
 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

4 
 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

5 
 

 
 
Comments 



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

6 
 

Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell asked for clarification of the eliminated fees and if everyone 
was getting the large area fee.  Mr. Jones said yes, it is one fee that covers all areas, versus a fee 
for different areas.  He said most areas that were rented were over an acre. 
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell asked about staffing fees on slide 4. She asked if the whole 
amount was going to people who are staffing or if it was what the County was charging to utilize 
staff. Mr. Jones said it covered the benefits associated with the hourly rates for the staff. 
 
Commissioner Leake asked how parks versus playgrounds were disseminated.  Mr. Jones stated 
that they would not rent playgrounds as they were an amenity within a park. 
 
Commissioner Leak asked if they were responsible for security at the County sites.  Mr. Jones said 
the County was responsible for security at its sites.  He said events would be staffed with the 
appropriate people and charged accordingly.   
 
Commissioner Leake asked if the information would be housed in the Recreation Centers.  Mr. 
Jones said they would begin the process online and then if there are more questions or information 
needed, we would sit down and meet with them to discuss the requirements for the event.   
 
Commissioner Meier asked regarding Park Road Park if a gentleman who was charged $50 for a 
bike event would now be charged $100.  Mr. Jones said it depends and that there may not be a 
charge. He said If they are housing bikes in a corner and not affecting other usages, there may be 
no fee at all but If the event affected other parts of the park that would prevent others from using 
it, then there may be a fee. He said it depended on the circumstance. 
 
Director Jones explained the fee eliminations.  
 
Commissioner Griffin asked if the County had a program for free swimming classes. Mr. Jones 
said yes, they give out a certain number of free swim lessons. He said the information was 
communicated on the County’s website, recreation centers, and aquatic centers. 
 
Commissioner Powell said it seemed like they were trying to streamline things.  Mr. Jones stated 
that they are trying to simplify things for the users.   
 
Commissioner Powell stated that when you say it would not adversely affect revenue, I think it’s 
important to say this will not adversely affect cost recovery because the average person didn’t 
understand how much it costs for everything that went into anything special such as a special 
event or a special class, whatever the extras were beyond playgrounds.  She said it was important 
to talk in terms of cost recovery because they had to be able to recover the cost.  She asked for 



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

7 
 

clarification about elimination.    Mr. Jones said the goal was to streamline to eliminate 
redundancy. 
 
Commissioner Powell said the North Region Rec Center pickleball fees were so low that the 
people were not getting a membership, they were just paying the $1 fee.  She said Iredell County 
people were coming in to play and were paying $2.  She said the YMCA charged $5 to play and 
the people that had passes wanted to be able to play and asked what could be done.  She said if 
they needed to increase the Pickleball fees, now would be the time. 
 
Commissioner Powell asked when CMPD would set its rate and whether it would be before the 
budget. Mr. Jones said he would let the Board know once they did. He said the off-duty rate range 
was between $45 and $75 an hour. 
 
Commissioner Altman said she would like to see the master schedule of all the fees.  She said it 
may not make sense to the public without seeing the entire list. 
 
Commissioner Altman asked when a space would need to be rented. Mr. Jones said if someone 
wanted a space in the park and wanted it exclusive to their guests, would they need to rent the 
space, depending on the number of guests you would have. 
 
Commissioner Altman asked what the processing time was like to have an event.  Mr. Jones said 
to host an event, they would like at least 60 days’ notice before the event.    
 
Commissioner Altman also asked if groups need insurance. Mr. Jones stated yes, depending on 
the type of event, especially such as an event that included alcohol or had a bouncy house. 
 
Commissioner Jerrell asked for clarity/examples on slide 3, renting park open spaces. Mr. Jones 
stated that if you were to have a birthday party with 100 people and no one else could enter the 
space, you would pay $100 per hour. He said the area is based on the size of the space.   
 
Commissioner Jerrell asked if they looked at changing anything with respect to fee waivers. Mr. 
Jones said that they were now offering neighborhood committees four free events a year, whereas 
we previously only offered one. 



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

8 
 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

9 
 

 



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

10 
 

 



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

11 
 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

12 
 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

13 
 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

14 
 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

15 
 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

16 
 

 



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

17 
 

 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

18 
 

Comments 
 
Commissioner Powell questioned whether all the fee adjustments were exactly in alignment with 
the Environmental Leadership Action Plan.  Mr. Gujjarlapudi said that the ELAP did not really have 
a fee, but all the mentioned activities were in alignment and further the ELAP goals. 
 
Commissioner Powell said they had in the plan that as time went on, they had to increase the 
fees.  She asked if it was enough. Mr. Gujjarlapudi said it was a good start, enough to meet our 
obligations for the next couple of years. He said, if need be, we can come back to the County 
Manager but for now, it was a reasonable adjustment.   
 
Commissioner Powell said regarding slide 26 that it seemed like the Board could get some 
feedback about the big changes that were being made. Mr. Gujjarlapudi clarified that it is a 350-
ton increase going from 53.50 to 57, which is an increase of $3.50 a ton. 
 
Mr. Gujjarlapudi said for Solid Waste they looked at the fees every year to see if any adjustments 
were needed. 
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell asked if the fee adjustments were going to make the County 
more efficient with permitting and inspections.  Mr. Gujjarlapudi said right now they were getting 
ready to implement Go-live with Accela, the new technology solution, by the end of the calendar 
year and that was going to streamline and simplify a lot of the processes.  He said performance 
and issues were looked at every month by the BDC (Building Development Commission), which 
was made of the industry.  He said they hold the County accountable concerning performance and 
expectations. 
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell questioned if we were staffed enough to handle what we 
had going on or if we were working with a skeleton crew.  Mr. Gujjarlapudi said they were 
constantly recruiting.  He said at the beginning of this year, there were almost 50 vacancies, and 
they were now in the mid-30s and were making progress.   
 
Commissioner Altman questioned slide 26 if it was a good or bad thing accepting recyclables from 
out-of-county residents.  Mr. Gujjarlapudi said on the net is a good thing for us, and we only 
accept recyclables, not trash. He said they could sell the recyclables and bring the revenue back 
into the County.  He said overall it was a benefit to the County. 
 
Commissioner Altman questioned what was happening with the tires.  Mr. Gujjarlapudi said they 
are being sent to a recycling location off-site with a contractor for recycling.   
Commissioner Altman asked why they didn’t charge more to recycle tires.  Mr. Gujjarlapudi said 



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

19 
 

various companies have tried that in the past and have found that if the cost was too high, you 
would see illegal dumping on the side of the road or in an empty lot.   
 
Commissioner Altman asked where the bulk of the tires come from.  Mr. Gujjarlapudi said they 
come from various sources. 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

20 
 

 



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

21 
 

 



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

22 
 

 
 
Comments 
 



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

23 
 

Commissioner Dunlap said that he knows that the Health Department had the ability to waive a 
fee.  He asked what the process was to waive a fee if someone couldn’t afford to pay their bill.  
Dr. Washington said, in most cases, no one is required to pay at the time of services except for a 
select number of adult vaccines that are optional such as a Rabies vaccine or a Shingles vaccine 
He said for those, the patient would be asked to pay at the time of service, but otherwise, no 
service is contingent upon the ability to pay. He said there is never a fee for children or family 
planning.  He said they billed people on a sliding scale.  He said people were asked about their 
ability to pay, and if they said they couldn’t, they were asked for their income, which was 
calculated, and if they didn’t have it at the time, they would be sent a bill. 
 
Commissioner Dunlap asked when the books are balanced, and patients still had an outstanding 
balance if it was a write-off.  Dr. Washington said that they would still have a balance on their 
account but that the Health Department did not pay for collection services. He said it was a 
condition of the state that they had to render service even though someone may have an 
outstanding balance. 
 
Commissioner Powell asked how it was that the Health Department made a person pay before 
receiving a rabies shot.  Dr. Washington said rabies shots were very expensive.  He said they only 
did pre-exposure prophylaxis; If a person was working where there was a high likelihood of rabid 
animal exposure, then it was only a few hundred dollars.  If someone was exposed (post-exposure 
prophylaxis), that person would have to go to the ER for initial treatment and would likely go back 
to the same hospital for rounds 2,3, and 4, which could cost up to $20,000.  He said if they 
qualified, they could get some assistance through the hospital's programs. He said there were 
hundreds of exposures a month.  He said they were looking into potentially being able to do doses 
2,3, and 4 but did not have a solution yet. 
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell asked for more information on colposcopies. Dr. Washington 
said that they expect to have at least 2 active clinics per month serving 8 – 12 patients on a given 
day. He said they had about 40 external referrals a month due to abnormal Pap Smears.  He stated 
that one of the challenges was getting appointments scheduled due to the external facilities being 
very busy.  He said another challenge was the patient needing a cash payment at the time of 
service, so if the patient didn’t have the funds to pay, it could delay getting procedures done. He 
said there were also some challenges in closing the loop with some of the agencies to ensure the 
County, as the initial care provider, was able to do close follow-up. He said this would allow them 
to deliver the service directly and control the cost to the patient. 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

24 
 

23-0273 MECKLENBURG COUNTY DIGITAL DIVIDE OVERVIEW 
  
The Board received as information an overview highlighting digital divide initiatives throughout 
Mecklenburg County. 
 
Background: Throughout the nation, organizations and institutions have either incorporated or 
transitioned to digital and online platforms as a mechanism to serve their customers and clients. 
Moreover, the COVID-19 pandemic led this change to pivot rapidly.  In addition, digital access and 
literacy are fundamental for enhanced student learning, job attainment and work skills 
proficiencies. Unfortunately, there was (and still remains) a segment of the population that is left 
out due to lack of internet access and devices, familiarity to navigate systems and/or competency 
with software, thereby creating a digital divide.  This gap exists locally, and addressing this is 
priority for our community.  Hence, there is cross-section of initiatives that are being undertaken 
to bridge this divide. 
 
County Manager Diorio stated that the ask of the Board was for $10 million; not for us to 
appropriate $10 million but that the County would commit to spending $10 million on Digital 
Divide activities on a go-forward basis. 
 
Dr. Leslie Johnson, Deputy County Manager gave the presentation. 
  
 

 

Digital Divide Overview

Mecklenburg County
BOCC Public Policy Workshop

April 25, 2023



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

25 
 

 

 

WHAT IS DIGITAL DIVIDE?

The term “digital divide” refers to the gap between 
individuals, households, businesses and geographic areas 
at different socio-economic levels with regard to their 
opportunities to access information and communication 
technologies and to their use of the internet for a wide 
variety of activities.

Understanding the Digital Divide | READ online (oecd-ilibrary.org)
https://read.oecd-ilibrary.org/science-and-technology/understanding- the-digital -divide_236405667766#page5

2

"Digital Inclusion" refers to the activities 
necessary to ensure that all individuals and 
communities, including the most disadvantaged, 
have access to and use of information and 
communication technologies.

DIGITAL INCLUSION

C
O

M
P

U
T

E
R

 D
E

V
IC

E
S

WHAT'S DIGITAL INCLUSION?

https://www.digitalinclusion.org/definitions/

3



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

26 
 

 

 
 
 
 

BEST PRACTICE STRATEGY

Five Elements of Digital Inclusion:
1. Affordable, robust broadband internet service

2. Internet-enabled devices that meet needs of user

3. Access to digital literacy training

4. Quality technical support

5. Applications and online content designed to enable 
and encourage self-sufficiency, participation and 
collaboration

Digital Inclusion must evolve as technology advances. Digital Inclusion requires intentional strategies and investments to 
reduce and eliminate historical, institutional and structural barriers to access and use technology.
(“Definitions.”National Digital Inclusion Alliance. Accessed July2020. https://www.digitalinclusion.org/definitions/)

4

CHARLOTTE-MECKLENBURG STRATEGY

Center for Digital Equity

Vision: The Center for Digital Equity is the backbone organization for a 
collective impact strategy bringing together residents, public, andprivate 
sector partners to co-create solutions allowing every resident the 
opportunity to thrive in our modern culture.

Mission: To make Mecklenburg County the most digital equitable 
community in America.

5



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

27 
 

 

 
 
 
 

CENTER FOR DIGITAL EQUITY FRAMEWORK

Policy, Advocacy and
Ecosystem Development

Mecklenburg County
Residents

Data, Program 
Measurement, and 

Research

Device and Connectivity

Digital Literacy and
Skilling

Digital Navigation and
Technical Support

Public Partners

Private Partners

Community Partners

6

MECKLENBURG COUNTY DIGITAL DIVIDE

Digital Deserts *
exists in all

7 local jurisdictions

Digital Desert defined as a household 
without a device and/or access to internet

7



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

28 
 

 

 

MECKLENBURG COUNTY INVESTMENTS

Initiative Description Amount
Charlotte Mecklenburg Library
Digital Divide Expansion

An expansion of the Library's existing efforts to
address digital divide by enhancingDigiLit curriculum,
increasing the number ofDigiLit courses, adding a
mobile DigiLit classroom, purchasingapproximately
100 Wi-Fi enabled laptops for checkout,continuing to
offer free hotspot checkouts, opening a pop-up
computer center in Uptown, and providing additiona
materials that support workforce upskilling and
English as a Second Language.(ARPA)

$2,917,635

City Startup Labs- REEP 3.0 The ReEntry Entrepreneurship (REEP) program will
provide comprehensive and applied workforce and
entrepreneurial training to formerly incarcerated
persons. (ARPA)

$962,800

8

MECKLENBURG COUNTY INVESTMENTS

Initiative Description Amount
Community Education
Resource Centers

Two computers labs with11 high tech computers and
a 3D printer at each site– Amay James and Bette Rae
Recreation Centers.The labs will be available for
public access and programming to include educationa
sessions on game coding. (Participatory Budget)

$90,000

MeckTech "Pilot" Provided households impacted by COVID-19 with
personal computers.A total of 1,400 devices
were distributed October – December 2020. (CARES

Supplemental Information
• The City of Charlotte allocated CARES funding for 

the purchase of 655 additional devices.

• The Merancas Foundation donated funds to purchase 
and refurbish 325 more computers.

$500,000

9



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

29 
 

 

 

MECKLENBURG COUNTY INVESTMENTS

Initiative Description Amount
Wi-Fi: Virtual Expansion at
Detention Center &
Courthouse

Wi-Fi infrastructure throughout detention facility and
courthouse providing the capability to conduct
professional evaluations, telemedicine visits and cour
proceedings in a virtual environment. (ARPA)

$800,000

Total $6,980,435

11

MECKLENBURG COUNTY INVESTMENTS

Initiative Description Amount
Per Scholas IT Training Funding to provide 12– 14 weeks of tuition-free

technical and professional skills training needed to
launch quality jobs in the IT sector such as IT Suppor
Software Engineering, Cybersecurity, and AWS. (ARP

$400,000

Wi-Fi: Neighborhood Parks Free public Wi-Fi within the boundaries of six
identified parks– Druid Hills, Grier Height, Kilbourn
Reid, Tyron Hills, and Fred Alexander Parks. (ARPA)

$350,000

Wi-Fi: Recreation Centers Free public Wi-Fi at eight recreation centers or
pavilions– Arbor Glen, Bette Rae Thomas, Ivory/Bake
MLK, Jr, Southview, Sugaw Creek, West Charlotte,
and Clanton Recreation Centers (ARPA)

$960,000

10



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

30 
 

 

 

PARTNER HIGHLIGHTS

Initiative Description
311 Digital Navigators • The Center for Digital Equity has launched a Digital Navigator

service that is designed to ensure everyone in Mecklenburg Count
can find and connect with available digital inclusion resources.

Digital Navigatorshelp individuals navigate to and through:
o Signing up for affordable home broadband internet service
o Purchasing affordable technology
o Basic device and connectivity issues
o Learning new digital skills

12

PARTNER HIGHLIGHTS

Initiative Description
Access Charlotte • The City of Charlotte earmarked$3.25 million in funding from its 

CARES Act Fund to supporta range of investments that promote 
digital inclusion and equity across the city:

o $1.5 million to provide public Wi-Fi network on transit and 
in select public spaces and residential areas broadband deserts

o $1 million to the Charlotte-Mecklenburg SchoolsFoundation to
provide internet connectivity for hotspots to enable remote 
learning during.

o $750,000 used for:
 311 Digital Navigators
 8 Learning Labs – services that provide computers, devices

and other equipment to the community.
13



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

31 
 

 

 

PARTNER HIGHLIGHTS

Initiative Description
Access Charlotte • The City of Charlotte earmarked$3.25 million in funding from its 

CARES Act Fund to supporta range of investments that promote 
digital inclusion and equity across the city:

o $1.5 million to provide public Wi-Fi network on transit and 
in select public spaces and residential areas broadband deserts

o $1 million to the Charlotte-Mecklenburg SchoolsFoundation to
provide internet connectivity for hotspots to enable remote 
learning during.

o $750,000 used for:
 311 Digital Navigators
 8 Learning Labs – services that provide computers, devices

and other equipment to the community.
14

PARTNER HIGHLIGHTS

Initiative Description
Charlotte-Mecklenburg Schools
(CMS) Campaign

• Public awareness promotions (website and mailers to parents) on 
the Affordable Connectivity Program and Digital Navigator Service.

Digital Skills Ready @ 50+ • Google.org awarded a grant to the AARP Foundation to provide
technology and digital skills training to people over 50 years of age
Senior Planet from AARP,Fill My Cup! and Mecklenburg County 
are partnering to provideclasses and workshops on a wide range o
technologies, from video conferencing to online job search tools to
office productivity software.

Digital Literacy Program • Mecklenburg County Sheriff's Office (MCSO) has partnered with
Digital Charlotte, Queens University and Charlotte Works to crea
a program where residentslearn how create resumes, search for 
jobs, pay bills, and do online banking.

15



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

32 
 

 

 

PARTNER HIGHLIGHTS

Initiative Description
Eliminate the Digital Divide
(E2D)

• E2D collects used laptops from generous corporations, refurbishe
them in student-led technology labs, and distributes them to stude
families who don't have a computer at home.

MeckTechComputer Kit • As a recipient of anEmergency Connectivity Fund grant, the 
Charlotte Mecklenburg Library will be issuing 20,000 refurbished 
laptops toadults who do not have computer/laptop and reside in 
Mecklenburg County. Each laptop is free and includes a preloaded 
productivity and education applications.

• The Center for Digital Equity has Digital Navigators on site when
laptops are being distributed to assist individuals in applying for th
Affordable Connectivity Program.

16

PARTNER HIGHLIGHTS

Initiative Description

Your Home, Your Internet • Inlivian and The Center for Digital Equity received a grant from the
Federal Communications Commission. The grant will allow the CD
in partnership with Inlivian, to expand the digital navigator initiative
with a direct focus on residents in Inlivian properties and those 
receiving housing vouchers.

17



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

33 
 

 

 

Initiative Internet
Access

Computer
Devices

Digital
Literacy

City Startup Labs- REEP 3.0

Charlotte Mecklenburg Library
Digital Divide Enhancements

Community Education Resource Centers

Meck Tech Pilot

Per Scholas IT Training

Wi-Fi for Neighborhood Parks

Wi-Fi for Recreation Centers

WiFi: Virtual Expansion Detention Cente
& Courthouse

MECKLENBURG COUNTY INVESTMENTS

18

Initiative Internet
Access

Computer
Devices

Digital
Literacy

311 Digital Navigators * * *
ACCESS Charlotte

CMS Campaign *
Digital Skills Ready @ 50+

Digital Literacy Program (MCSO)

Eliminate the Digital Divide(E2D)

MeckTech Computer Kit

Your Home, Your Internet

PARTNER INITIATIVES

 Promotional information, resource access, 
and technical assistance

19



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

34 
 

 

 

MECKLENBURG STATISTICS

American Community Survey, S2801, Types of Computers and Internet Subscriptions, 5 Year Estimates

2021
HOUSEHOLDS

WITH NO COMPUTER

4.1%

20

MECKLENBURG STATISTICS

2021
HOUSEHOLDS

WITH NO INTERNET

8.5%

American Community Survey, S2801, Types of Computers and Internet Subscriptions, 5 Year Estimates

21



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

35 
 

 

 

APPENDIX
MECKLENBURG COUNTY INVESTMENTS: INITIATIVES W/ DIGITAL INTEGRATION

22

Agency/Initiative Description Amount
Charlotte Mecklenburg Black Chamber of
Commerce Healthcare Workforce
Development

TheHealthCares-Heal thy Careers  i s  an a l l ied heal th, denta l , and nurs ing
profess ional  workforce development tra ining program. The program 
focus  on margina l i zed and low-income communities  with a  specia l  emph
on LGBTQIA+ youth, former foster youth, and immigrants. The program will
leverage technology, including augmented reality, virtual reality and online
training platforms.Upon completion, participants  receive ass is tance to
secure certifications  and matchmaking for ava i lable entry-level  jobs . (ARPA)

$600,000

Latin American Chamber of Commerce
of Charlotte (LACCC)

The funding wi l l  support a  Hispanic/Latino Center for Economic Oppo
in the Albemarle Road Corridor of Opportuni ty. The Center wi l l  serve  
destination for employee recrui tment, ski l l-bui lding, workforce tra ining an
wi l l  feature a  smal l  bus iness  incubator and coworking services  to cr  
pipel ine ofentrepreneurs and assisting them to start, sustain and scale up
their business. This  project addresses  one of the Leading on Opportuni ty
Strategies  to help more Hispanic/Latino fami l ies  l iving in lower opp
communities  get and s tay on a  path to l iving wage income and asset 
through increased access  to high qual i ty jobs  that pay l iving wages  a  
pursui t of entrepreneurship. (ARPA)

$1,500,000

APPENDIX
MECKLENBURG COUNTY INVESTMENTS: INITIATIVES W/ DIGITAL INTEGRATION

23

Agency/Initiative Description Amount
Mount Carmel Baptist Church (MCBC)
Enrichment Program

MCBC wi l l  address  the menta l  heal th of our s tudents  and fami l ies  b  
Sanford Harmony, a  Socia l-Emotional  Learning Curriculum. The program is
access ible onl ine and on mobi le apps . This  wi l l  a l low parents  and f
members  to access  a l l  aspects  of the program at no charge.MCBC will
provide each student with technology access, allowing teachers and
students to benefit from the online portions of Sanford Harmony.(ARPA)

$415,000

She Built This City An expans ion of the Women in the Trades  Pre-Apprenticeship program, by
adding a  second location to tra in 160 additional  participants .The workforce
programprovides  participants  the ski l l s  needed to obta in employme   
construction company or apprenticeshipprogram and offers  wrap-around
services to remove barriers such aschi ldcare needs , technology needs, and
access  to transportation. (ARPA)

$540,413

SMART GIRLS HQ LLC
Smart Girls Squad STEM Program

Smart Girl s  i s  a  20-week STEM career education program for 5th-grade gi rl s
which increases  interest, confidence, and fluency in STEM career path
Funding supports  300 s tudents  with at least 70% of the s tudents  rep
demographics  his torica l ly underrepresented in STEM careers .
Designer Module: Animate Your Message– Digital Storytellers: Students
design a public service announcement around a cause they care about and
create an animated message to share with classmates and families.(ARPA)

$435,800



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

36 
 

  
Comments 
 
Commissioner Jerrell asked County Manager Diorio to bring clarity to the $10 million to continue 
initiatives.  County Manager Diorio said they wanted to be able to say they have raised the money, 
so if $10 million was invested in Digital Divide, they counted that towards the fundraising goal as 
opposed to just cutting a check and giving it to someone else where we would not know where 
the funds were going and couldn’t track how they were being used.  She said that what we've 
already done, which was almost $7 million, was taken into consideration, and the items in the 
Appendix, which was over $4 million they were in the $11 million range of direct investments in 
Digital Divide and programs that have Digital Divide inclusion components.  
 
Commissioner Jerrell confirmed that they were already over the ask.  County Manager Diorio said 
yes. 
 
Commissioner Jerrell asked that regarding the 17,000 individuals without computers if smart 
devices were included.  Dr. Johnson said no, this number was just strictly types of computers. 
 
Commissioner Jerrell asked what constituted a digital desert.  Dr. Johnson said the slide showed 
the aggregate data plots for a census track.  She said it showed that more than half of the 
households within that geographic boundary did not have either a device or internet access. 
 

APPENDIX
MECKLENBURG COUNTY INVESTMENTS: INITIATIVES W/ DIGITAL INTEGRATION

24

Agency/Initiative Description Amount
Southminster Funding focus  wi l l  be on improving heal thcare outcomes  for seniors  

COVID-19, with specific attention on helping to a l leviate socia l  i solation
among seniors  in Charlotte Mecklenburg. Higher priori ty wi l l  be give  
programs and services  that seek toaddress social isolation through means
such as mental  hea l th support, caregiver tra ining and education, and
technology solutions. (CARES)

$250,000

The Academy of Goal Achievers
Mentor Program

An intens ive mentoring program that provides  high school  s tudents  
young adults  (18-23 years  old) the opportuni ty to develop into youth le
and prepare and success ful ly complete post-secondary education and care
pathways . Key program activities  in this  two generational  model  incl  
increase, prepare and expose participants  to tra ining and employme
opportunities  that meet workforce demands  now and in the future th
col lege and career readiness , group mentoring and career coaching.
There are also sessions on social media and creating LinkedIn profiles.
(ARPA)

$443,925



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

37 
 

Commissioner Jerrell asked if the City was quarterbacking a strategy to drive down the numbers.  
County Manager Diorio said the Center for Digital Equality at Queens had the framework and 
were charged with advancing the framework, but there wasn’t much money behind it.  She said 
the County made its investments. She said there was a private sector fundraising bowl of $20M 
that was sitting at the Foundation for the Carolinas and there was a committee making decisions 
about how money would be deployed.  She said it was a little fragmented. 
 
Commissioner Jerrell said he didn’t get the sense that there was a comprehensive strategy to 
drive to zero. Dr. Johnson said that the Center for Digital Equality in this formal state, commenced 
in 2021, prior to that it was individual efforts.  
 
Dr. Johnson said that private dollars were available to support CMS and hotspots for schools. 
When the county funded the Mecktech kit program, it was primarily funding adults, so they were 
trying to bridge the gap and do something that was complimentary.  She said the group has now 
established a strategic plan, most of it was leveraging federal dollars that existed.  She said a 
good portion was being used to access the Affordable Connectivity Program. They are doing the 
lion's share to get the devices into the community.  She said the City was standing up some things, 
and the County was relying heavily on the Charlotte-Mecklenburg Library System to implement 
many of the programs. She said instead of doing something different, the County focused on how 
to widen the net. 
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell asked if it was self-reported who didn’t have internet or a 
computer.  Dr. Johnson said the data points being used was from the American Housing 
Community Survey which was comparable to the US census.  
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell stated that in 2019, we donated several computers to E2D. 
She asked if the County has consistently kept up with donating its used computers. Dr. Johnson 
stated that they still used E2D to donate the computers, allowing them to be part of the ecosystem 
for being refurbished. 
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell said that she would like to know how many computers per 
year have been donated. 
 
Commissioner Leake asked how seniors could get assistance in understanding computer basics 
as they are the individuals who were left out of the process.  She said they needed to find a way 
to impact the crescent to enlighten the people in the County, especially in District 2.  She asked 
how they could provide those basic resources.  Dr. Johnson said they could always do more.  She 
said there were programs out there, such as Digital Skill Ready @50+, and the programs were 
housed at VCW and Hickory Grove Library. She said there were also programs at Southminister 



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

38 
 

which provided a host of services to be supportive and gave iPads to seniors.    
 
Kaitlyn Moen described all the computer literacy programs available for seniors as well as the 
general community.  She also talked about the ARPA funded classes. 
 
Commissioner Leake asked for the information disseminated in District 2.  Dr. Johnson said she 
would create the equivalent of a flyer with information. 
 
Commissioner Griffin asked how the task force from Queens evaluated their success as it related 
to Digital Inclusion.  Dr. Johnson said the center was working on robust metrics that demonstrated 
the collective impact based on the strategies the County was implementing.  She said metrics from 
the census gave them a pulse of how they were doing and trending. She said they were also trying 
to gather how many they were able to touch and how many they were able to get internet access 
to.  She said they needed to find a way to have a consistent methodology and get data centrally 
deposited to get the aggregate of what multiple people are doing to see the collective impact.  
 
Commissioner Griffin asked if there was a sense of timing to have an improved capacity for 
evaluating.  Dr. Johnson said they were trying to do storyboarding which included an active map 
that could show information more readily.  She said most of the datapoints used now came from 
reputable but national databased that were filtered down to the County.  She said they needed 
to get the local data, but there had not been a defined time for that.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
 
Commissioner Griffin said laptops that were 6+ years old and had not been retooled sometimes 
lost certain functionalities.  He asked if there was any sense of how they could make sure the 
devices were capable of utility by the residents.  Dr. Johnson said sustainability; she said the 
current focus was leveraging the federal dollars.  She said the library is in the process of 
distributing 20,000 laptops and 2-3 years from now they could reach their useful life and what 
would be the strategies then.  She said they needed to come up with an ongoing strategy.  She 
said Wi-Fi at the parks will give ongoing connectivity.   
 
Commissioner Griffin said there needed to be more comprehensive sustainability. 
 
Commissioner Meier asked if there was a program in the City or County that helps people pay for 
internet access. The Affordable Connectivity program is specifically designed to help individuals 
get internet access from local providers at a significantly reduced cost for those who apply. She 
said navigator service is very helpful in completing the paperwork to get the most cost-effective 
plan. 
 
Commissioner Cotham said services have improved since she became a commissioner. She said 



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

39 
 

unfortunately, several people, many of whom are seniors, didn’t understand the lingo. She said 
some acronyms that were used may not be understood by seniors, so they asked that we keep 
the radar up with understanding. 
 
Commissioner Powell said she would like to have an action map where the colors could be 
changed based on areas where action has been taken to ensure the Digital Desert is being 
serviced.   
 
Commissioner Powell said one of the barriers that wasn’t mentioned was how people and 
business couldn’t get highspeed internet because of the railroad tracks.   
 
Commissioner Powell said she received many calls during COVID-19 about the Digital Divide in 
the Mountain Island Lake Library area. She said they needed to contact the libraries about limited 
hours on Fridays, Saturdays, and Sundays because it was hard on families when the libraries 
weren’t open when they really needed them. 
 
Chair Dunlap stated that after hearing the presentation, he isn’t sure who was “driving the bus”.  
He said he understood that the City and County made a commitment to invest but the County 
determined what we invested in.  He asked if the County reported back to the center to say this 
is what our investments were.  Dr. Johnson said yes. 
 
Chair Dunlap asked if once the center received that information if there were updates to tell the 
County and the City where the investments were made.   
 
Chair Dunlap said slide showed that in 2021, there were 37,000 without internet, etc. and the 
map showed that most were in the crescent.  He said he was trying to assess what the additional 
need was and to what degree the County needed to invest in it.  He said people needed to be 
connected to even apply for a job.  He said they still had a long way to go.   He said monitoring 
needed be done on an ongoing basis to know what was left to be done.  He said even as more 
was done, computers became obsolete, this seems to be a matter that will never be completely 
solved.  He said there needed to be some type of replacement policy.   
 
Chair Dunlap asked if there was an expectation to make an additional investment and what that 
investment ought to look like.  He said they have been talking for years about ways to spend Fund 
balance and this would be the place to it.  He asked if the County made the decision regarding 
where the investment was, did that reduce the numbers presented.   Dena Diorio said there was 
a $20M private investment that had not yet been deployed.  She suggested to continue to work 
with Dr. Johnson on the committee to wait and see how that goes before investing more.  She 
said the County fulfilled their obligation, but the City hadn’t done the rest of its commitment along 



Meeting Minutes 
April 25, 2023 
 

40 
 

with the private dollars not yet been deployed.  Her recommendation was that the County wait 
to see how that went over the next year when it would be in a better position to decide how and 
where to invest. 
 
Dr. Johnson said the Center for Digital Equity was the forum to have the North Star and manage 
accordingly. Dr. Johnson discussed how and where the City allocated its investment.   
 
 
23-0017 COMMISSIONER REPORTS 
 
Commissioners shared information of their choosing within the guidelines as established by the 
Board, which included, but not limited to, past and/or upcoming events. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Meier, seconded by Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell, and 
carried unanimously to adjourn the meeting. 
 
With no further business to come before the Board, Chair Dunlap declared the meeting 
adjourned at 4:57 p.m. 
 
 
 
______________________________ ____________________________ 
Kristine M. Smith, Clerk to the Board                                             George Dunlap, Chairman 


	MINUTES OF MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
	ATTENDANCE


